

Guildhall Improvement Committee

Date: THURSDAY, 28 JUNE 2012

Time: 3.00pm

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM - 2ND FLOOR WEST WING, GUILDHALL

Members: Mark Boleat Dep

Ray Catt Roger Chadwick Stuart Fraser Deputy John Owen-Ward Deputy Sir Michael Snyder Alderman Simon Walsh

Enquiries: Jacqui Daniels

tel. no.: 020 7332 1480

jacqui.daniels@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Chris Duffield
Town Clerk and Chief Executive

AGENDA

Part 1 - Public Agenda

- 1. **APOLOGIES**
- 2. DECLARATIONS BY MEMBERS OF ANY PERSONAL OR PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA
- 3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

To agree the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 29 March 2012. (copy attached).

For Decision (Pages 1 - 2)

4. ORDER OF THE COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL

Order of the Court of Common Council, 19 April 2012, appointing the Committee and approving the Committee's Terms of Reference (copy attached).

For Information (Pages 3 - 4)

5. **ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN**

To elect a Chairman in accordance with Standing Order No. 29.

6. **ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIRMAN**

To elect a Deputy Chairman in accordance with Standing Order No. 30.

7. **REVIEW OF THE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS IMPLEMENTED IN 2011**Report of the Town Clerk (on behalf of the Post Implementation Governance Review Working Party) (copy attached).

For Decision (Pages 5 - 16)

- 8. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE.
- 9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT.
- 10. **EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC**

MOTION – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part1 of schedule 12A of the Local Government Act as follows:-

Item No 11-14 **Exemption Paragraph**

3

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda

11. **NON-PUBLIC MINUTES**

To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 29 March 2012 (copy attached).

For Decision

(Pages 17 - 18)

12. PROGRESS OF GUILDHALL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT RELATED WORKS BEING UNDERTAKEN BY THE CITY SURVEYOR - UPDATE

Report of the City Surveyor (copy attached).

For Decision

(Pages 19 - 26)

13. PROJECT DIRECTOR'S REPORT

A report of the Project Director – As with previous reports, items to note or for decision will be highlighted in **bold italic** (separately circulated).

For Information

(Pages 27 - 38)

14. MAIN CONTRACT DISPUTES STRATEGY

Joint report of the Chamberlain and the Comptroller and City Solicitor (copy attached).

For Decision

(Pages 39 - 44)

- 15. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE
- 16. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILE THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED



GUILDHALL IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE

THURSDAY 29 MARCH 2012

Minutes of the meeting of the GUILDHALL IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE held at Guildhall, EC2 on THURSDAY 29 MARCH 2012 at 2.30pm.

Present

Members:

Deputy Sir Michael Snyder, Chairman Raymond Catt Roger Chadwick Deputy John Owen-Ward Alderman Simon Walsh

Officers:

Jacqui Daniels - Town Clerk's Department

Chris Bilsland - Chamberlain

Kate Limna - Chamberlain's Department

Richard Jeffrey - Comptroller and City Solicitor's Department - Comptroller and City Solicitor's Department - Comptroller and City Solicitor's Department

Bob Meldrum - City Surveyor's Department

Also Present:

Alan Moore, Project Director - Trench Farrow Graham Grabski - Northcroft

An External Legal Adviser

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Stuart Fraser, Deputy Chairman and Mark Boleat.

2. DECLARATIONS BY MEMBERS OF PERSONAL OR PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS IN RESPECT OF ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING

There were no declarations.

3. MINUTES

The public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 16 December 2011 were approved.

4. QUESTIONS

Ambulatory Works and Signage

A Member enquired about the cleaning regime for the newly installed West Ambulatory glass roof. He also referred to excess signage at the entrance to the North Wing. The City Surveyor undertook to look into both matters and to respond to the Chairman and the Member concerned. The Chairman encouraged the City Surveyor to remove any unnecessary signage. The Chairman referred to the proposed refurbishment of the North Ambulatory.

5. **URGENT ITEMS**

There were no urgent items.

6. **EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC**

RESOLVED – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act:-

Item No.

Exemption Paragraph/s

3

7 - 11

SUMMARY OF MATTERS CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC EXCLUDED

7. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 29 September 2011 were approved.

8. PROGRESS OF GUILDHALL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT RELATED WORKS BEING UNDERTAKEN BY THE CITY SURVEYOR – UPDATE

A report of the City Surveyor was received.

9. PROJECT DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Reports of the Project Director and the Quantity Surveyor were considered.

10. MAIN CONTRACT DISPUTES STRATEGY

A joint report of the Chamberlain and the Comptroller and City Solicitor was approved.

11. QUESTIONS

There were no questions.

12. **URGENT ITEMS**

There were no urgent items.

The meeting closed at 3.30pm

CHAIRMAN

Contact Officer: Jacqui Daniels

tel. no. 020 7332 1480

e-mail: jacqui.daniels@cityoflondon.gov.uk

WOOTTON, Mayor	RESOLVED: That the Court of Common Council holden in the Guildhall of the City of London on Thursday 19th April 2012,
	doth hereby appoint the following Committee until the first meeting of the Court in April, 2013.

GUILDHALL IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE

- 1. A Non-Ward Committee consisting of,
 - the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee
 - the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Finance Committee
 - the Chairman of the Planning & Transportation Committee or his/her representative
 - a representative of the Corporate Asset Sub-Committee
 - Alderman Simon Walsh, M.A.
 - Sir Michael Snyder, Deputy

2. Quorum

The quorum consists of any three Members.

3. Membership 2012/13

The ex-officio Members referred to in paragraph 1 above, together with Alderman Simon Walsh MA and Deputy Sir Michael Snyder.

4. Terms of Reference

In respect of the project to refurbish the North Wing, West Wing, Old Library and Justice Rooms of the Guildhall Complex, to be responsible for:-

- (i) overall direction;
- (ii) review of progress;
- (iii) decisions on significant option development and key policy choices.

Committee:	Date:
Guildhall Improvement Committee	28 June 2012
Subject:	Public
Review of the Governance Arrangements implemented	
in 2011	
Report of:	For Decision
Town Clerk (on behalf of the Post Implementation	
Governance Review Working Party)	

Summary

The Court has agreed that a Working Party should be established to undertake a post-implementation review of the revised governance arrangements agreed in March 2011 after twelve months of their operation, to take stock of the new governance arrangements and how they are working.

The purpose of this report, prepared on behalf of the Working Party, is to seek comments, if any, from each Committee on the governance arrangements introduced last year and the impact that they may have had on the operation of your Committee.

Recommendation: It is recommended that this Committee considers whether it wishes to make any representations to the Working Party on the revised governance arrangements in so far as it affects this Committee.

Main Report

Background

- 1. The Court has agreed that a Working Party should be established to undertake a post-implementation review of the revised governance arrangements agreed in March 2011 after twelve months of their operation, to take stock of the new governance arrangements and how they are working.
- 2. For the purposes of clarification, this review is not, therefore, in relation to any new governance initiatives but is restricted to considering the operation and effectiveness of the revised arrangements implemented last year. A summary of the revised governance arrangements is contained Appendix A.

Views on the Governance Arrangements

3. The Working Party has agreed that the most effective and inclusive way of identifying whether there are any issues arising out of the operation of the revised arrangements is to seek the views of the various City Corporation Committees and all Members of the Court individually. This will enable comments to be expressed in the context of the operation of the various

- Committees (including observations from non-City Corporation Members) and will also allow all Members to have their say individually and raise any points; all of which will help to inform the work of the Working Party.
- 4. The purpose of this report is to seek a view on whether any representations should be made to the Working Party on the revised governance arrangements in so far as they affect this Committee. All of the views expressed will be collated and submitted to a further meeting of the Working Party in September.

Background Papers:

Summary of the revised governance arrangements agreed by the Court of Common Council in March 2011.

Appendix A: Summary of the revised governance arrangements

Contact:

Simon Murrells | simon.murrells@cityoflondon.gov.uk | 0207 332 1418

Summary of the Governance Changes Implemented in April 2011

Set out below are the changes agreed by the Court on 3 March 2011 which have been in operation since 1st April 2011.

A. The Court of Common Council

- A1. Not less nine Court meetings are now held each year (reduced from eleven) and a short spring recess now takes place on an annual basis.
- A2. At least two informal or private Member meetings (at which no decisions could be taken) are arranged each year. This is on the basis that they do not proceed if there is insufficient business:
- A3. Any Member, provided that he or she has the support of twenty other Members, can requisition a report and/or a decision of any of the City Corporation's Committees for consideration and final decision by the Court of Common Council, provided that such action does not preclude a decision being taken and/or implemented that was necessary for legal reasons or for the efficient conduct of the City Corporation's business;
- A4. Standing Order No.11 governing the conduct of debate in the Court of Common Council has been amended as follows:
 - in addition to the current arrangements governing debate, a further provision be made enabling all Members to speak on a second occasion for no longer than two minutes; and
 - should the mover of an amendment to a motion choose to speak for a second time (on the amendment), he or she shall be the penultimate speaker on the amendment (the mover of the original motion being the final speaker on the amendment).
- A5. Standing Orders governing the number of supplementary questions that may be asked has been amended so as to increase from two to three the number of other Members (ie not the Member asking the question) allowed to ask two supplementary questions provided that the supplementary questions arise naturally out of the original question and the answer to it;
- A6. Standing Orders have been amended so as to increase the time limit for putting and answering questions, including supplementary questions, from 30 minutes to 40 minutes:
- A7. To avoid the period allocated for asking and responding to questions being taken up with issues concerned with awards, prizes and memorials, a regular item is now placed on the summons for meetings of the Court to enable such matters to be reported upon in writing.

B. Ward Committees

- B1. The Planning & Transportation, Port Health & Environmental Services, Markets, Finance and Community & Children's Services Committees remain as Ward Committees.
- B2. All Wards are now able to choose whether or not to nominate a Member (or Members) to serve on Ward Committees rather than being obliged to nominate a Member (or Members) or 'pair' with another Ward;
- B3. Where there are vacant or unfilled places on a Ward Committee by virtue of a Ward not making a nomination(s), the vacant or unfilled place can be advertised to all Members and filled by the Court;
- B4. Any Ward having six or more Members can nominate up to two Members to a Ward Committee irrespective of whether a Ward has sides;
- B5. In addition to the Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee, the Deputy Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee is now an ex-officio Member of the Finance Committee. This complements the current arrangement whereby the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Finance Committee are ex-officio Members of the Policy & Resources Committee;
- B6. The remit of the Finance Committee has been widened to include performance monitoring and its terms of reference adjusted to reflect this. The performance monitoring was to be undertaken by the Estimates Working Party (EWP) or such body determined by the Finance Committee. (NB: Finance Committee subsequently agreed to dispense with EWP and created an Efficiency and Performance Sub-Committee to deal with this area of activity).
- B6a. In addition to the above, the constitution of the Finance Committee was amended by the Court on 8 September 2011 to include the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Investment Committee, creating a reciprocal arrangement between the Policy and Resources, Finance and Investment Committees (see F2 and J4 below).
- B7. All Wards that have 200 or more residents (based on the ward list) are able to nominate a maximum of two Members to the Community & Children's Services Committee; under this arrangement, the current provision for four Members to be elected by the Court, at least two of whom shall represent the main four residential wards, was discontinued; and
- B8. The Community & Children's Services Committee was asked to consider giving oversight of its housing management activities (excluding the Barbican Estate) to a sub-committee (with power to act) to enable greater focus in that area. (NB: The Community & Children's Services Committee subsequently created the Housing Management Sub-Committee to oversee the City Corporation's housing activities).

C. Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee

C1. A new Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee was established with responsibility for matters relating to culture, heritage, tourism and visitors

including overseeing the development of policies and strategies in those areas. It also took on:

- the responsibilities of the Libraries, Archives & Guildhall Art Gallery Committee which ceased to exist;
- the various tourism, heritage and Benefices activities and responsibilities currently undertaken by the City Lands & Bridge House Estates Committee which also ceased to exist;
- oversight of the City Corporation's Visitor Strategy, the City of London Festival and the management of the City Information Centre from the Policy and Resources Committee; and
- the management of Keats House from the Keats House Management Committee. A Consultative Committee should continue to operate although the detailed arrangements would be a matter for the Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee to determine.

D. City Lands and Bridge House Estates Committee

D1. The City Lands and Bridge House Estates (CLBHE) Committee ceased to exist and its work merged with the work of other Committees, such as the new Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee and the new Investment Committee. Other elements of CLBHE Committee's work was transferred to the Policy & Resources Committee and is managed by dedicated Sub-Committees. For example, the management of operational property is now undertaken by the Corporate Asset Sub-Committee and hospitality and Members' privileges activities are undertaken by the Hospitality Working Party and the Members' Privileges Sub-Committee both of which are chaired by the Chief Commoner.

D2. Where previously the CLBHE Committee would have hosted an event of City Corporation hospitality, the Chief Commoner now oversees the detail for that event in line with parameters set by the Hospitality Working Party. The number of Members to comprise the host element is also determined by the Hospitality Working Party on the basis of a rota maintained by the Town Clerk, together with other Members with a special connection with or interest in the guest organisation.

E. The office of Chief Commoner

- E1. Candidates for the office of Chief Commoner are nominated by not less than 10 other Members and he or she is elected by the whole Court of Common Council from amongst the Common Councilmen (the expectation is that Aldermen will not vote in the election for Chief Commoner);
- E2. For 2011, the election of Chief Commoner was held in April and thereafter, the election is held in September of each year, prior to the successful candidate taking office in April, to enable a period of 'lead-in';
- E3. The 'job description' for the office of Chief Commoner was approved;
- E4. The Chief Commoner remains an ex-officio Member of the Policy and Resources Committee and is also Chairman of any sub-committees

- responsible for City of London Corporation hospitality and Members' privileges;
- E5. Provision has been made in Standing Orders to enable the Chief Commoner to report on and speak to activities and responsibilities of the subcommittees referred to in E4 above in the Court of Common Council; and
- E6. The Chief Commoner is not able to be Chairman of any City of London Corporation committee with the exception of the sub-committees referred to above. However, as with other chairmanships, the Chief Commoner is able to continue an existing chairmanship until the next meeting of the relevant committee when a new chairman shall be elected.

F. Investment Committee

- F1. This new non-ward committee was established. The Investment Committee has responsibility for managing and overseeing the City Corporation's property and non-property investments in accordance with approved strategies and policies;
- F2. The Investment Committee comprises 14 Members elected by the Court of Common Council, 8 Members appointed by the Policy and Resources Committee from amongst all Members of the Court, together with the Chairmen and Deputy Chairmen of the Policy and Resources and the Finance Committees in an ex-officio capacity but with voting rights;
- F3. The Investment Committee appoints and maintains two Boards, one for each investment area (property and non-property) for the purposes of detailed scrutiny and decision taking, with the Chairman of the Investment Committee is also able to be Chairman of one of the Boards;
- F4. The Boards are empowered to co-opt people with relevant expertise or experience, including non-Members of the Court, to assist in their deliberations; and
- F5. Provision has been made in Standing Orders to enable the Chairmen of both Boards to report on and speak to their respective activities and responsibilities in the Court of Common Council and to ensure that any decisions, especially those relating to property, are taken without undue delay.

G. Audit and Risk Management Committee

- G1. A new non-ward committee, Audit and Risk Management was with responsibility for the City Corporation's activities and responsibilities in these areas (with the Finance Committee relinquishing its current responsibilities for audit and risk); and
- G2. The Audit and Risk Management Committee shall comprise 9 Members elected by the Court of Common Council (the Chairman of the Policy and Resources, Finance and Investment Committees not being eligible for election to the Committee), 3 external Members (ie non-Members of the Court of Common Council), the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Finance Committee (ex-officio with no voting rights) and a representative of the Policy and Resources Committee also in an ex-officio capacity with no voting rights.

G3. The Deputy Chairman of Audit and Risk is not able to be Chairman of another committee.

I. Open Spaces Committees

- I1. The management of the City Corporation's open spaces is now maintained by three Non-Ward Committees, as follows:-
- (i) Open Spaces, City Gardens and West Ham Park Committee comprising 8 Members elected by the Court of Common Council together with the Chairmen and Deputy Chairmen of the Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and Queen's Park and the Epping Forest and Commons Committees (see below) in an ex-officio capacity. The Committee is responsible for setting overall strategy for the operation of the City Corporation's open spaces and for the management of City Gardens. It is also responsible for the management of West Ham Park. This area of work is undertaken separately from the Committee's other business and the Committee's composition includes 4 representatives nominated by the Heirs-at-Law of the late John Gurney, 1 representative nominated by the Parish of West Ham and 2 representatives nominated by the London Borough of Newham:
- (ii) Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and Queen's Park Committee comprising at least 12 Members elected by the Court of Common Council together with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Open Spaces, City Gardens and West Ham Park Committee (see above) in an ex-officio capacity. The Committee is responsible for the management of Highgate Wood and Queen's Park. It is also responsible for the management of Hampstead Heath with this area of work being undertaken separately from the Committee's other business. The composition of the Committee includes at least 6 external representatives which must include 1 representative of the London Borough of Camden, 1 representative of the owners of Kenwood lands and 3 persons representing local, ecological, environmental or sporting interests; and
- (iii) Epping Forest and Commons Committee comprising 12 Members of the Court of Common Council including 10 Members elected by the Court of Common Council together with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Open Spaces, City Gardens and West Ham Park Committee (see above) in an ex-officio capacity, to be responsible for the management of Burnham Beeches and the City Commons. The Committee also manages Epping Forest and this area of work is undertaken separately from the Committee's other business. The composition of the Committee includes 4 Verderers elected or appointed pursuant to the Epping Forest Act 1878. If the Chairman and/or Deputy Chairman of the Open Spaces, City Gardens and West Ham Park Committee are already Members of the Epping Forest and Commons Committee in their own right, the vacancy(s) are filled by the Court of Common Council.

J. Policy and Resources and Police Committees and the Boards of the Governors of the City Schools

Policy and Resources Committee

- J1. Of the five vacancies that becomes available on the Policy Committee each year, one place is now reserved for a Member with less than 10 years' service on the Court, resulting in at least four places on the Committee for Members with less than 10 years' service at the time of their appointment;
- J2. In view of the synergies between the work of the Energy Working Party (previously of the City Lands and Bridge House Estates Committee) and the Sustainability Working Party (of the Policy and Resources Committee), the work has been be merged and transferred to the Policy Committee and is operated through a dedicated Sub-Committee (the Energy and Sustainability Sub-Committee) whose membership can be drawn from the whole Court;
- J3. The Policy and Resources Committee is responsible for providing additional scrutiny, oversight and challenge for the management of major projects and programmes of work, including, amongst other things, considering all proposals for capital and supplementary revenue projects (including those which may be funded from external sources), and determining, at detailed options appraisal stage, whether projects should be included in the capital and supplementary revenue programme as well as the phasing of any expenditure. This work is undertaken by a dedicated subcommittee, the Projects Sub-Committee, which comprises 3 Members appointed by the Policy and Resources Committee, 2 Members appointed by the Finance Committee. The Projects Sub-Committee is also able to co-opt 2 further Members from the Court of Common Council with relevant experience.
- J4. The Policy & Resources Committee was asked to review its various exofficio appointments. A review was subsequently undertaken and the outcome reported to the Court on 8 September 2011. Whilst it was felt that the current ex-officio places were still relevant, the Court acknowledged that culture was an area which over the years had become more prominent and which also had substantial resource implications. It was therefore agreed that the Chairman of the new Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee should become an ex-officio Member of the Policy Committee. Similarly, the development and management of the City Corporation's investment portfolio (property and non-property) was considered to be of great significance and the Court also agreed that the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Investment Committee should also serve as ex-officio members, creating a reciprocal arrangement between the Policy and Resources, Finance and Investment Committees.

Police Committee

- J5. For the purposes of continuity the length of service of the Chairman of the Police Committee was extended to a term not exceeding four years;
- J6. The current restriction whereby no Member of the Court of Common Council is eligible to serve on the Police Committee until such time as they have served a minimum of two years on the Court, should be removed (NB:

The constitution of the Police Committee has been reviewed since the governance review).

Boards of Governors of the City of London School, the City of London School for Girls and the City of London Freemen's School

- J7. The three City School Boards were recommended to consider establishing a Working Party comprising key Members from each Board such as the Chairmen and Deputy Chairmen, to discuss important issues that may be of common interest, for example pay awards.
- J8. The restriction whereby no Member can serve on more than one Board of Governors was removed.

K. Service on City Corporation Committees and Outside Bodies

Reserving places on Non-Ward Committees for 'newer' Members

K1. With the exception the Policy and Resources Committee which has separate arrangements, 10% of places (where 10% results in a fraction it should be rounded down, subject to at least one place being reserved on every non-Ward Committee for a Member falling in to this category) on all elected committees are reserved for Members with less than 5 years' service at the time of their appointment.

<u>Limiting the number of Grand Committees on which a Common Councilman</u> can serve at any one time

K2. The number of grand committees on which a Common Councilman can serve at any one time (excluding appointments or nominations to committees in an ex-officio capacity) is limited to no more than eight.

Limiting the number of Outside Bodies that a Member can serve on

- K3. The number of outside bodies that a Member can serve on at any one time (excluding appointments that are by virtue of Office or in an ex-officio capacity) is limited to no more than six. If a vacancy cannot be filled from the Common Council, then such vacancy can be filled by non-Members, including officers on the basis that there are no issues of major concern to the work of the City Corporation likely to arise;
- K4. Appointments to outside bodies are made by the Court of Common Council at meetings other than the meeting at which the appointment of Committees is undertaken

L. Other Committee Issues

<u>Publishing data of attendance by Members at Committee Meetings</u>

L1. Data relating to the attendance of Members at committee, sub-committee and Court meetings was to be more accessible and placed on-line on the City Corporation's website provided that the figures are put in context (ie attendances should be shown together with the actual number of opportunities to attend).

Submission of supporting statements

L2. Members seeking election as Chairmen and Deputy Chairmen of committees are now able voluntarily to submit a statement of no more than 300 words in support of their candidature in advance of the meeting at which the election is to be held.

Frequency of Committee meetings

L3. The frequency of Committee meetings be reviewed and determined by individual Committees, as was presently the case.

Sub-Committees, Working Parties and 'Workshop' style meetings

- L4. The constitutional position of sub-committees and working parties and informal 'workshop' style meetings or Member and officer working groups was noted and the Court requested that all Committees review their current arrangements to ensure that they conform to the principles outlined; and
- L5. The concept of informal 'workshop' style meetings in appropriate circumstances was accepted in order to improve communication and increase interaction, particularly between Members and officers, at an early stage in major complex, costly or contentious proposals.

Committee Papers and Minutes

- L6. Committee reports, minutes and papers are to be concise and to the point and that no late papers should be dispatched without the relevant Committee Chairman's consent having first been obtained;
- L7. Agendas, reports and other papers shall continue to be dispatched in hard-copy, but greater use of electronically circulated papers be made; and
- L8. A standard of seven working days after the Court of Common Council or Committee meetings should be set within which officers will seek to circulate the draft minutes to all Members (or Members of the relevant Committee).

Outgoing Chairmen

L9. In addition to the above it was subsequently agreed that in order to assist with arrangements for the election of a deputy chairman, outgoing Chairmen should be required to give notice of their intention to stand down.

M. Terms of Reference, Delegations and Standing Orders

- M1. A scheme for the Appointment of Members on Committees and Terms of Reference for the City of London Corporation Committees was approved;
- M2. The Framework for Accountability and Delegation approved by the Court in January 2005 was endorsed and individual Committees asked to review delegations to officers to ensure that they are appropriate and relevant.
- M3. Revised Standing Orders were agreed and the Town Clerk authorised, in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Policy and Resources Committee, to make any necessary consequential changes to

Standing Orders to take account of the decisions relating to the new governance arrangements.

N. Post Implementation Review

N1. Subject to the Court approving these new arrangements, a post-implementation review be undertaken after 12 months of their operation, with the membership of the working party being agreed by the Court, in order to take stock of the new governance arrangements and how they are working. This would include the operation of the Policy and Resources Committee. The Court subsequently approved the membership of the Post-implementation Review of the Governance Working Party on 8 September 2011.

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted